UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[X] ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

OR	
[] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d)	OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from	to
Commission File Number	er <u>333-193347</u>
NIGHTFOOD HOL	
(Exact name of registrant as sp	pecified in its charter)
Nevada	46-3885019
(State or Other Jurisdiction of	(I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization)	Identification No.)
520 White Plains Road- Suite 500	
Tarrytown, New York	10591
(Address of Principal Executive Offices)	(Zip Code)
212-828-82	75

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

85 Parkview Road, Elmsford, NY 10523

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes [] No [X]

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes [] No [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes [X] No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is company.	a large accelerated	filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerate	d filer, or a smaller repor	ting
Large accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer	[]	Accelerated filer Smaller reporting company	[] [X]	
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a	shell company (as de	efined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)	. Yes [] No [X]	
State the aggregate market value of the voting are which the common equity was last sold, or the average of the voting are which the common equity was last sold, or the average of the voting are which the common equity was last sold.	C	1 2 2	•	e at
As of June 30, 2014, the issuer had 25,130,560 sl	nares of its common	stock issued and outstanding, par value \$0	0.001 per share.	
		2		

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	PART I	
Item 1.	Business	4
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	6
Item 1B.	Unresolved Staff Comments	11
Item 2.	Properties	11
Item 3.	Legal Proceedings	11
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	11
	PART II	
Item 5.	Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters	12
Tieni J.	and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities	12
Item 6.	Selected Financial Data	12
Item 7.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	12
Item 7A.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	14
Item 8.	Financial Statements and Supplementary Data	14
Item 9.	Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure	16
Item 9A.	Controls and Procedures	16
Item 9B.	Other Information	17
	PART III	
Item 10.	Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance	17
Item 11.	Executive Compensation	18
Item 12.	Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters	19
Item 13.	Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence	19
Item 14.	Principal Accounting Fees and Services	20
	PART IV	
Item 15.	Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules	20

Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements made in this Annual Report involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included herein are based on current expectations that involve numerous risks and uncertainties. Our plans and objectives are based, in part, on assumptions involving judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions, technological developments related to business support services and outsourced business processes, and future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control.

Although we believe that our assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements included in this prospectus will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein particularly in view of the current state of our operations, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a statement by us or any other person that our objectives and plans will be achieved. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the factors set forth herein under the headings "Business," "Risk Factors" and "Plan of Operations."

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

NightFood Holdings, Inc. ("we", "us" "the Company" or "NightFood") is a Nevada corporation organized on October 16, 2013 to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of NightFood, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Subsidiary") from its sole shareholder, Sean Folkson. All of our operations are conducted by the subsidiary. We are in the business of manufacturing, marketing and distributing a functional food line of snacks that are suitable for evening consumption and which may provide the nutritional foundation for better sleep. A large number of Americans consume nighttime snacks that are high in sugar, fat, and calories; such snacks can impair sleep and also impair health in general. Management believes that our products are unique in the functional food industry and that there is a substantial market for our products. We are in the process of establishing distribution channels for these products. Our offices are located at 520 White Plains Road – Suite 500, Tarrytown, New York 10591 and our telephone number is (212) 828-8275. We maintain a web site at www.nightfood.com. Any information that may appear on our web site should not be deemed to be a part of this report.

Industry Overview

We are an early-stage company that is seeking to establish a market within the functional food industry by offering a line of snack foods that are appropriate for evening consumption. Based on available figures for 2013 published by SymphonyIRI Group, American consumers spend over \$50 Billion annually on snacks consumed at night, and this figure continues to grow. A majority of adults are trying to eat foods and snacks that they understand will prevent or manage health problems and 37% of consumers are willing to pay more for foods with perceived health benefits. Moreover, industry data indicates that the most popular nighttime snack choices include products and categories that are traditionally considered high in calories, and "unhealthy" options, such as cookies, salty snacks (chips & popcorn), ice cream, and candy.

Our Products, Present and Proposed

NightFood nutrition bars are made from commercially available ingredients and a proprietary combination of other components in a proprietary process. NightFood bars will be merchandised in a 6-pack. At retail, they will typically be merchandised open, so the consumer can purchase an individual bar, or an entire box of 6. The SRP on an individual bar is \$2.49. NightFood® is the first product positioned as a healthier & better alternative to other convenient nighttime snack options. Compared to the existing popular options, each 140 calorie NightFood® bar is specially formulated to satisfy late-night cravings, tackle nighttime hunger, and support better quality sleep on fewer calories, and with a healthier, more sleep-friendly nutritional profile. We believe that NightFood® bars are an optimal after-dinner snack in terms of composition and calories. In addition, the bars contain a clinically proven bioactive ingredient called Chocamine® (a patented natural cocoa extract that promotes satiety and craving

satisfaction, while also providing the health and relaxation benefits of chocolate without the caffeine, fat, calories, and sugars).

Depending upon the success of the NightFood® bar and our available resources, we intend to expand our product line to include formulations with and without sleep aiding bioactive ingredients, and a healthy nighttime snack product specifically for children, and perhaps into different food formats.

Production

We have utilized contract manufacturers for producing our products. These include Noble Foods for product manufacture, Empress Label and Stuart Packaging for our packaging, and ShipRight Solutions for our warehousing and fulfillment. We consider our relations with each of these suppliers to be good. We also believe that the nature of the market for these services ensures that if we were required to find an alternate supplier for any of these services, we could do so on similar terms.

Marketing & Distribution

In August, 2014, The Company secured an initial purchase order from a major national specialty retail chain, focusing on nutritional products and supplements. Under this agreement, this major retail chain will launch NightFood bars into approximately 900 of their US locations during the month of September, 2014. The Company is also involved in discussions for product distribution with other major retail chains in the specialty nutrition space, as well as mass drug.

Competition

The nutritional/snack food business is highly competitive and includes such participants as large companies like Nabisco, Keebler, Kellogg's and Quaker Oats and more specialized companies such as Cliff Bar and many smaller companies. Many of these competitors have well established names and products. While there are companies currently marketing traditional-type snacks laced with sleep aids such as melatonin, management is not aware of any competitor offering snacks optimized for healthier or better nighttime nutrition and sleep support. We will initially compete based upon the unique nature of our product. However, other companies, including those with greater name recognition than us and greater resources may seek to introduce products that directly compete with our products. Management believes that if a competitor sought to develop a competing product, it could do so and begin to establish retail distribution in 12-24 months.

Inventory

We started fiscal 2014 with limited inventory. A minimum run of NightFood bars costs approximately \$50,000 to begin the inventory cycle. As cash became available for inventory procurement, we were able to do a full production run of our Cookies n' Dreams flavor bars. The finished bars became available for distribution during the first week of June, 2014. This initial production run provided product in hand to enhance our sales efforts with our targeted retailers to secure purchase orders. As we began consummating these purchase orders, we proceeded to initiate a full production run of our second flavor (Midnight Chocolate Crunch). This was obligatory as the retailer wanted a minimum of two flavors to place on their shelves, as is common in the industry. Our balance sheet as of June 30th shows approximately \$73,000 of inventory assets. \$50,000 of this was finished product in inventory, and another \$23,000 represents deposits we had placed with our manufacturing partners towards finished product. Subsequent to the June 30th balance sheet, a 2nd production run has been completed and is now in our warehouse, and the \$23,000 of inventory deposits have been converted to finished inventory. Future production runs of product will require no deposit with the bar manufacturer as we've secured preferred terms starting with our next production run, allowing us to pay for product 30 days after it lands at our warehouse. The previous arrangement had us depositing 50% approximately 6-8 weeks prior to production, and paying the balance prior to receipt of product in our warehouse. These terms make it easier for us to scale in a less cashintensive fashion as we land new accounts and broaden distribution.

Intellectual Property Rights

We own the registered trademark "NightFood®" and believe that it will prove important to our business. We also rely on proprietary information as to our formulas and have non-disclosure agreements with our suppliers.

Personnel

We currently have no employees except Sean Folkson, our President and CEO. Should we be successful in executing our business plan, we anticipate hiring additional employees in the future to assist with marketing, sales and clerical positions.

Customers

No customer represented more than ten (10%) of our revenue during the last two fiscal years. Should the arrangement with our initial retail chain be successful, AND should the company be unable to secure distribution relationships with other major retailers, it is likely that more than 10% of our revenues would eventually be coming through our relationship with said retail chain.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factors in evaluating our business, operations and financial condition. The occurrence of any the following risks could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have had limited operations and require substantial additional funds to execute our business plan. We have had limited operations and the bulk of our sales have resulted from our website. We generated revenue of \$2,575 in the year ended June 30, 2014 and \$5,817 in the year ended June 30, 2013. Because our capital resources had been extremely limited we were unable to fund continual production of our product through contract manufacturers which resulted in limited revenues. Unless we are able to leverage our status as a public company into effective fundraising to fund our capital requirements, we will not be able to execute on our business plan and purchasers of our stock will be likely to lose their investment.

Our independent auditors have expressed doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We received a report on our financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 from our independent registered public accounting firm that includes an explanatory paragraph and a footnote stating that there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern due to its losses and negative net worth. Inclusion of a "going concern qualification" in the report of our independent accountants may have a negative impact on our ability to obtain financing and may adversely impact our stock price in any market that may develop.

We remain uncertain of our proposed products' market acceptance. Although management firmly believes that snacks designed for evening consumption is a viable niche market with a potential for attractive returns for investors, this belief is largely based on informal observations and we have not conducted any formal marketing studies. Our limited resources preclude us from doing so. If management is wrong in its belief and there is an insufficient market for our products, it is likely we will fail and investors will lose their investment.

We are not subject to all of the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("34 Act") and this will limit information available about us. We are subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and are required to file current reports, periodic reports, annual reports, and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission through December 14, 2014. We have not yet determined if we will file a 1934 Act registration statement to continue to be subject to such reporting requirements. If we do, we will become subject to proxy rules and Section 16 or 14 of the 1934 Act. However, until such time, if ever, as we do file a 34 Act registration statement information regarding securities holdings of our officers, directors and 10% stockholders will not be made available on a current basis and we will be able to take shareholder actions without complying with the SEC's proxy rules. In addition, Section 15(d) of the 34 Act provides an automatic suspension of the periodic reporting obligation as to any fiscal year (except the fiscal year in which the registration statement became effective) if an issuer has fewer than 300 security holders of record at the beginning of such fiscal year. Although we intend to file periodic reports, we could cease to do so at any time.

Our ability to hire additional personnel is important to the continued growth of our business. Our continued success depends upon our ability to attract and retain a group of motivated marketing and business support professionals. Our growth may be limited if we cannot recruit and retain a sufficient number of people. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel.

We may face substantial competition. Competition in all aspects of the functional food industry is intense. We will compete against both large conglomerates with substantial resources and smaller companies, including new companies that might be formed with resources similar to our own. Competitors may seek to duplicate the perceived benefits of our products in ways that do not infringe on any proprietary rights that we can protect. As a result we could find that our entire marketing plan and business model is undercut or made irrelevant by actions of other companies under which we have no control. We cannot promise that we can accomplish our marketing goals and as a result may experience negative impact upon our operating results.

Our success depends to a large extent upon the continued service of key managerial employees and our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. Specifically, we are highly dependent on the ability and experience of our key employees, Sean Folkson, our president and CEO and to a lesser extent on Peter Leighton, our Vice President. We do not have an employment agreement with either of Mr. Folkson or Mr. Leighton. The loss of either Mr. Folkson or Mr. Leighton would present a significant setback for us and could impede the implementation of our business plan. There is no assurance that we will be successful in acquiring and retaining qualified personnel to execute our current plan of operations.

The ability of our officers to control our business will limit minority shareholders' ability to influence corporate affairs. Our president, Sean Folkson, owns 15,895,500 shares and our Vice President Peter Leighton owns 4,000,000 shares or an aggregate of approximately 79.2 % of our 25,130,560 issued and outstanding shares. Because of their stock ownership, our officers will be in a position to continue to elect our board of directors, decide all matters requiring stockholder approval and determine our policies. The interests of our president may differ from the interests of other shareholders with respect to the issuance of shares, business transactions with or sales to other companies, selection of officers and directors and other business decisions. The minority shareholders would have no way of overriding decisions made by our president. This level of control may also have an adverse impact on the market value of our shares because he may institute or undertake transactions, policies or programs that result in losses, may not take any steps to increase our visibility in the financial community and/ or may sell sufficient numbers of shares to significantly decrease our price per share.

If we do not receive additional financing we will not be able to execute our planned expansion. We require between \$400,000 and \$1,000,000 in debt or equity financing to affect a planned expansion of our operations and roll out of our existing and any future products. Management believes that it will be able to raise funds after we commence trading on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board ("OTCBB") as investors would see that there would be an "exit strategy" for their investment. However, this may not prove to be the case and we cannot be certain that we will become OTCBB listed or that, even if we do, that additional funds will be raised. No one has committed to invest the money we need to complete our planned operations. If we cannot raise additional funds, it is unlikely that we will be able to support a stock price close to the amount paid by our investors and our investors may lose all or most of their investment. Recent economic developments and the current economic climate may make it especially difficult to raise additional funds. If we do not raise additional funds, we may be required to abandon our current business plan and either operate our plan on a much smaller scaled basis or seek a different line of business. However, we will use our concerted best efforts to seek additional funds and affect our planned business and we have no other present plans. We note that from January 1, 2014 to September 23, 2014, we have raised approximately \$221,000 in private placement transactions.

We may be exposed to potential risks resulting from new requirements under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we will be required to include in our annual report our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our fiscal year, at such time as we are required to file an annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Furthermore, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to attest to whether our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial respects and separately report on whether it believes we have maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of the end of our fiscal year. We have not yet completed our assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. We expect to incur additional expenses and diversion of management's time as a result of performing the system and process evaluation, testing and remediation required in order to comply with the management certification and auditor attestation requirements.

We do not have a sufficient number of employees to segregate responsibilities and are presently unable to afford increasing our staff or engaging outside consultants or professionals to overcome our lack of employees, and this may impair our ability to effectively comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

We currently do not have any employees and rely on our CEO, Sean Folkson and our Vice President/CMO Peter Leighton to perform all executive functions. Peter Leighton will be working for us on a part time basis. Accordingly, we cannot segregate duties to provide sufficient review of our financial activity. During the course of our testing our financial procedures, we may identify other deficiencies that we may not be able to remediate in time to meet the deadline imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for compliance with the requirements of Section 404. In addition, if we fail to achieve and maintain the adequacy of our internal controls, as such standards are modified, supplemented or amended from time to time, we may not be able to ensure that we can conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Moreover, effective internal controls, particularly those related to revenue recognition, are necessary for us to produce reliable financial reports and are important to help prevent financial fraud. If we cannot provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our business and operating results could be harmed, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information, and the trading price of our common stock, if a market ever develops, could drop significantly. Our officers' lack of experience in accounting and financial matters may make our efforts to comply more difficult and cause us to hire consultants to assist him cutting into our resources.

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company. As a company with less than \$1.0 billion in revenue during its last fiscal year, we qualify as an "emerging growth company" as defined in the JOBS Act. For as long as a company is deemed to be an emerging growth company, it may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and other regulatory requirements that are generally unavailable to other public companies. These provisions include:

- a requirement to have only two years of audited financial statements and only two years of related Management's Discussion and Analysis included in an initial public offering registration statement;
- an exemption to provide less than five years of selected financial data in an initial public offering registration statement;
- an exemption from the auditor attestation requirement in the assessment of the emerging growth company's internal controls over financial reporting;
- an exemption from the adoption of new or revised financial accounting standards until they would apply to private companies;
- an exemption from compliance with any new requirements adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board requiring
 mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplement to the auditor's report in which the auditor would be required to provide additional
 information about the audit and the financial statements of the issuer; and
- reduced disclosure about the emerging growth company's executive compensation arrangements.

An emerging growth company is also exempt from Section 404(b) of Sarbanes Oxley which requires that the registered accounting firm shall, in the same report, attest to and report on the assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. Similarly, as a Smaller Reporting Company we are exempt from Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and our independent registered public accounting firm will not be required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting until such time as we cease being a Smaller Reporting Company.

As an emerging growth company, we are exempt from Section 14A (a) and (b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 which require the shareholder approval of executive compensation and golden parachutes.

Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We have elected to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to those of companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

We would cease to be an emerging growth company upon the earliest of:

- the first fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of this offering,
- the first fiscal year after our annual gross revenues are \$1 billion or more,
- the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more than \$1 billion in non-convertible debt securities, or

as of the end of any fiscal year in which the market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates exceeded \$700 million as of
the end of the second quarter of that fiscal year.

You may have limited access to information regarding our business because our obligations to file periodic reports with the SEC could be automatically suspended under certain circumstances. We are required to file periodic reports with the SEC which will be immediately available to the public for inspection and copying (see "Where You Can Find More Information" elsewhere in this prospectus). Except during the year that our registration statement becomes effective, these reporting obligations may (in our discretion) be automatically suspended under Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act if we have less than 300 shareholders and do not file a registration statement on Form 8A (which we have not determined whether to file. After December 14, 2014 we will no longer be obligated to file periodic reports with the SEC and your access to our business information would then be even more restricted. We are currently required to deliver periodic reports to security holders. However, we will not be required to furnish proxy statements to security holders and our directors, officers and principal beneficial owners will not be required to report their beneficial ownership of securities to the SEC pursuant to Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Previously, a company with more than 500 shareholders of record and \$10 million in assets had to register under the Exchange Act. However, the JOBS Act raises the minimum shareholder threshold from 500 to either 2,000 persons or 500 persons who are not "accredited investors" (or 2,000 persons in the case of banks and bank holding companies). The JOBS Act excludes securities received by employees pursuant to employee stock incentive plans for purposes of calculating the shareholder threshold. This means that access to information regarding our business and operations will be limited.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Currently, there is no active public market for our securities, and there can be no assurances that any public market will ever develop or that our common stock will be quoted for trading and, even if quoted, it is likely to be subject to significant price fluctuations. Prior to the date of this report, there has not been any established trading market for our common stock, and there is currently no public market whatsoever for our securities. We have engaged a broker dealer who has applied to have our common stock listed on the OTC Bulletin Board ("OTCBB") maintained by the FINRA, but we can give no assurance that our application for a symbol will be granted. Even if we obtain a trading symbol, there can be no assurances as to whether any market for our shares will ever develop or the prices at which our common stock will trade. If the application is accepted, we cannot predict the extent to which investor interest in us will lead to the development of an active, liquid trading market. Active trading markets generally result in lower price volatility and more efficient execution of buy and sell orders for investors.

In addition, our common stock is unlikely to be followed by any market analysts, and there may be few institutions acting as market makers for the common stock. Either of these factors could adversely affect the liquidity and trading price of our common stock. Until our common stock is fully distributed and an orderly market develops in our common stock, if ever, the price at which it trades is likely to fluctuate significantly. Prices for our common stock will be determined in the marketplace and may be influenced by many factors, including the depth and liquidity of the market for shares of our common stock, developments affecting our business, including the impact of the factors referred to elsewhere in these Risk Factors, investor perception, and general economic and market conditions. No assurances can be given that an orderly or liquid market will ever develop for the shares of our common stock. Because of the anticipated low price of the securities, many brokerage firms may not be willing to effect transactions in these securities. See "Plan of Distribution" subsection entitled "Selling Shareholders and any purchasers of our securities should be aware that any market that develops in our stock will be subject to the penny stock restrictions."

Our board of directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred stock, which may have rights and preferences detrimental to the rights of the holders of our common shares. We are authorized to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, \$0.001 par value. As of the date of this prospectus, we have not issued any shares of preferred stock and have no plans to do so. Our preferred stock may bear such rights and preferences, including dividend and liquidation preferences, as the Board of Directors may fix and determine from time to time. Any such preferences may operate to the detriment of the rights of the holders of the common stock being offered hereby.

Our articles of incorporation provide for indemnification of officers and directors at our expense and limit their liability that may result in a major cost to us and hurt the interests of our shareholders because corporate resources may be expended for the benefit of officers and/or directors. Our articles of incorporation

and applicable Nevada law provide for the indemnification of our directors, officers, employees, and agents, under certain circumstances, against attorney's fees and other expenses incurred by them in any litigation to which they become a party arising from their association with or activities on our behalf. This indemnification policy could result in substantial expenditures by us, which we will be unable to recoup.

We have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC, indemnification for liabilities arising under federal securities laws is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against these types of liabilities, other than the payment by us of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding, is asserted by a director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, we will (unless in the opinion of our counsel, the matter has been settled by controlling precedent) submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction, the question whether indemnification by us is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue. The legal process relating to this matter if it were to occur is likely to be very costly and may result in us receiving negative publicity, either of which factors is are likely to materially reduce the market and price for our shares, if such a market ever develops.

Any market that develops in shares of our common stock will be subject to the penny stock restrictions that are likely to create a lack of liquidity and make trading difficult or impossible. Until our shares of common stock qualify for inclusion in the NASDAQ system, if ever, the trading of our securities, if any, will be in the over-the-counter market which is commonly referred to as the OTCBB as maintained by the FINRA. As a result, an investor may find it difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the price of our securities.

SEC Rule 15g-9 (as most recently amended and effective on September 12, 2005) establishes the definition of a "penny stock," for purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that has a market price of less than \$5.00 per share or with an exercise price of less than \$5.00 per share, subject to a limited number of exceptions. It is likely that our shares will be considered to be penny stocks for the immediately foreseeable future. This classification severely and adversely affects the market liquidity for our common stock. For any transaction involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the penny stock rules require that a broker or dealer approve a person's account for transactions in penny stocks and the broker or dealer receive from the investor a written agreement to the transaction setting forth the identity and quantity of the penny stock to be purchased.

In order to approve a person's account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must obtain financial information and investment experience and objectives of the person and make a reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that person and that person has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny stocks.

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure schedule prepared by the SEC relating to the penny stock market, which, in highlight form, sets forth:

- the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination, and
- that the broker or dealer received a signed, written agreement from the investor prior to the transaction.

Disclosure also has to be made about the risks of investing in penny stock in both public offerings and in secondary trading and commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative, current quotations for the securities and the rights and remedies available to an investor in cases of fraud in penny stock transactions. Finally, monthly statements have to be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks.

Because of these regulations, broker-dealers may not wish to engage in the above-referenced necessary paperwork and disclosures and/or may encounter difficulties in their attempt to sell shares of our common stock, which may affect the ability of selling shareholders or other holders to sell their shares in the secondary market and have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market. These additional sales practice and disclosure requirements could impede the sale of our securities, if and when our securities become publicly traded. In addition, the liquidity for our securities may decrease, with a corresponding decrease in the price of our securities. Our shares in all probability will be subject to such penny stock rules for the foreseeable future and our shareholders will, in all likelihood, find it difficult to sell their securities. Recently, several brokerage firms and clearing firms have adopted special "house rules" which make it more difficult for their customers to hold or trade low priced stock and these rules may make it difficult for our shareholders to sell their stock.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock. We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date and there are no plans for paying dividends on the common stock in the foreseeable future. We intend to retain earnings, if any, to provide funds for the implementation of our business plan. We do not intend to declare or pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Therefore, there can be no assurance that holders of our common stock will receive any additional cash, stock or other dividends on their shares of our common stock until we have funds which the Board of Directors determines can be allocated to dividends.

If a market develops for our shares, sales of our shares relying upon rule 144 may depress prices in that market by a material amount. All of the outstanding shares of our common stock are "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. As restricted shares, these shares may be resold only pursuant to an effective registration statement or under the requirements of Rule 144 or other applicable exemptions from registration under the Act and as required under applicable state securities laws. Rule 144 provides in essence that a person who has held restricted securities for a prescribed period may, under certain conditions, sell their shares as a result of revisions to Rule 144 which became effective on or about February 15, 2008, there is no limit on the amount of restricted securities that may be sold by a non-affiliate (i.e., a stockholder who has not been an officer, director or control person for at least 90 consecutive days) after the restricted securities have been held by the owner for a period of six months. A sale under Rule 144 or under any other exemption from the Act, if available, or pursuant to registration of shares of common stock of present stockholders, may have a depressive effect upon the price of the common stock in any market that may develop.

Any trading market that may develop may be restricted by virtue of state securities "Blue Sky" laws to the extent they prohibit trading absent compliance with individual state laws. These restrictions may make it difficult or impossible to sell shares in those states. There is no public market for our common stock, and there can be no assurance that any public market will develop in the foreseeable future. Transfer of our common stock may also be restricted under the securities or securities regulations laws promulgated by various states and foreign jurisdictions, commonly referred to as "Blue Sky" laws. Absent compliance with such individual state laws, our common stock may not be traded in such jurisdictions. Because the securities registered hereunder have not been registered for resale under the "Blue Sky" laws of any state, the holders of such shares and persons who desire to purchase them in any trading market that might develop in the future, should be aware that there may be significant state "Blue Sky" law restrictions upon the ability of investors to sell the securities and of purchasers to purchase the securities. These restrictions prohibit the secondary trading of our common stock. We currently do not intend and may not be able to qualify securities for resale in approximately 17 states that do not offer manual exemptions and require shares to be qualified before they can be resold by our shareholders. Accordingly, investors should consider the secondary market for our securities to be a limited one.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Description of Property

The company initiated a lease for office space in August 2014, at a total expense of approximately \$450 per month. This space currently provides a professional working environment for our sole employee (Sean Folkson, CEO), and is easily expandable as additional employees are added. We currently store our inventory in a fulfillment center at a cost of approximately \$200 per month which is part of our shipping and packing relationship. We believe that our properties are adequate for our current needs and that alternative similar or additional space could be found in the vicinity of our present property at similar cost should the need arise.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no current, past, pending or threatened legal proceedings or administrative actions either by or against the issuer that could have a material effect on the issuer's business, financial condition, or operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELAED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

As of the filing date, there is no market for the Company's stock. The Company plans on listing the stock for quotation on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board and has engaged a broker dealer who has submitted an application with FINRA for a trading symbol.

HOLDERS

The approximate number of stockholders of record at September 23, 2014 is 62. The number of stockholders of record does not include beneficial owners of our common stock, whose shares are held in the names of various dealers, clearing agencies, banks, brokers and other fiduciaries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

No dividends have ever been declared by the Board of Directors on our common stock. Our losses do not currently indicate the ability to pay any cash dividends, and we do not have the intention of paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We do not have any equity compensation plans. We do not have any warrants issued or outstanding.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTREED SECURITIES

Upon our formation, we issued 20,000,000 shares to Sean Folkson in exchange for all of the shares of NightFood, Inc., a New York corporation. Such transactions with the Company's founder was exempt from registration by reason of Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"). All of the shares issued in such transactions bear an appropriate restrictive legend.

In October 2013, an additional 200,000 shares were issued to 2 investors for \$10,000 in cash (\$0.05 per share). In January 2014, an additional 90,000 shares were issued to 2 investors for \$22,500 in cash (\$0.25 per share). No underwriter participated in the foregoing transactions, and no underwriting discounts or commissions were paid, nor was any general solicitation or general advertising conducted. The securities bear a restrictive legend and stop transfer instructions are noted on our stock transfer records.

These shares were issued in private offerings pursuant to Regulation D under the Act, and each of the investors therein represented in writing that such investor was an accredited investor as that term is defined in Regulation D and that he was acquiring the shares for his own account and for investment. A copy of the form of such subscription agreements is filed as Exhibit 4.1 and 4.2 to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. The offerings were, accordingly, exempt by reason of Section 4(6) of the Act.

Since our formation we have issued an aggregate of 4,118,560 shares to five consultants. These consultants acquired their shares for investment and for their own account. These privately negotiated transactions were exempt from registration by reason of Section 4(2) of the Act as transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering.

In the last quarter of our June 30, 2014 fiscal year, an additional 762,000 shares were issued to 14 investors for \$190,500 in cash (\$0.25 per share). No underwriter participated in the foregoing transactions, and no underwriting discounts or commissions were paid, nor was any general solicitation or general advertising conducted. The securities bear a restrictive legend and stop transfer instructions are noted on our stock transfer records.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS.

As of June 30, 2014, we had no compensation plans under which our equity securities were authorized for issuance.

PENNY STOCK REGULATION

Shares of our common stock will probably be subject to rules adopted the SEC that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in "penny stocks." Penny stocks are generally equity securities with a price of less than \$5.00 (other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on the NASDAQ system, provided that current price and volume information with respect to transactions in those securities is provided by the exchange or system). The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC, which contains the following:

- a description of the nature and level of risk in the market for penny stocks in both public offerings and secondary trading;
- a description of the broker's or dealer's duties to the customer and of the rights and remedies available to the customer with respect to violation to such duties or other requirements of securities' laws;
- a brief, clear, narrative description of a dealer market, including "bid" and "ask" prices for penny stocks and the significance of the spread between the "bid" and "ask" price;
- a toll-free telephone number for inquiries on disciplinary actions;
- definitions of significant terms in the disclosure document or in the conduct of trading in penny stocks; and
- such other information and is in such form (including language, type, size and format), as the SEC shall require
 by rule or regulation.

Prior to effecting any transaction in penny stock, the broker-dealer also must provide the customer the following:

- the bid and offer quotations for the penny stock;
- the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction;
- the number of shares to which such bid and ask prices apply, or other comparable information relating to the depth and liquidity of the market for such stock; and
- monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer's account.

In addition, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's written acknowledgment of the receipt of a risk disclosure statement, a written agreement to transactions involving penny stocks, and a signed and dated copy of a written suitability statement. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the trading activity in the secondary market for a stock that becomes subject to the penny stock rules. Holders of shares of our common stock may have difficulty selling those shares because our common stock will probably be subject to the penny stock rules.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not applicable.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon, and should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.

DEVELOPMENT PLANS

OVERVIEW

We are a nutritional food development, marketing and distribution company relying on our unique product, unique product positioning, and our marketing expertise to develop and market nutritional/snack foods that are appropriate for evening snacks. Over the past six months, we have raised approximately \$200,000 through sales of the Company's \$0.001 common stock. Approximately\$100,000 has been invested in inventory, as we developed and manufactured a complete run of NightFood Cookies n' Dreams bars in June 2014, and a complete run of NightFood Midnight Chocolate Crunch bars in August, 2014.

In late August, 2014, The Company secured a purchase order from a major national retail chain in the specialty nutrition space for approximately \$26,000. This is our first purchase order from a national retail chain

DEVELOPMENT PLANS

The Company plans to continue to expand distribution channels through major national retail chains in specialty nutrition, mass drug, and supermarkets. Continued implementation of our business plan is dependent on our ability to raise additional capital to invest in marketing and inventory to support the expanded distribution and new sales outlets.

INFLATION

Inflation can be expected to have an impact on our operating costs. A prolonged period of inflation could cause a general economic downturn and negatively impact our results. However, the effect of inflation has been minimal over the past three years.

SEASONALITY

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012 v Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013

Our operations during the FY ended June 30, 2013 were constrained by our limited capital. Throughout the FY ended June 30, 2013 ("FY 2013") we had a limited inventory of product remaining from our 2010 test production run. All of said 2010 inventory had passed its "best used by" date during FY 2012, and was written off during FY 2013. During a portion of FY 2013 we made sales from our website, however, by the end of the year all sales were to a limited number of persons who had placed recurring orders and had not cancelled them. Accordingly, our revenues declined from \$22,344 in FY 2012 to \$5,817 in FY 2013 as inventories were depleted and we did not make an active marketing effort during FY 2013. Our operating expenses in FY 2013 were also reduced to \$16,557 as compared to FY 2012 when they were \$100,514. This reflects our greater activity level during FY 2012. Due to our lower levels of activity, our loss was reduced from \$(89,803) in FY 2012 to \$(22,713) in FY 2013. We do not believe that these results provide a meaningful indication of our expected results now that we are able to produce additional product and actively market the same.

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013 v Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014

During the twelve months ended June 30th 2014, a major part of our efforts were dedicated to the filing of our S-1 registration statement and securing FINRA approval, while raising funds necessary for operations.

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014 ("FY 2014"), Company successfully raised \$223,000 through the sale of the Company's \$0.001 common stock. These proceeds were used to increase both cash and inventory on our balance sheet. Much of the funds went towards manufacturing inventory required to initiate retail roll-out, and towards other expenses related to retail rollout, such as broker fees, consulting fees, advertising, and website development, as well as graphic design and other one-time expenses related to the development of updated product and packaging.

Due to the limited finished product available during 2014 the revenue was limited. Subsequent to the end of fiscal year 2104, Company received a purchase order from a major national specialty retailer of nutrition products. In addition, Company has been in discussions with other national chains regarding distribution opportunities.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2014, we had cash on hand of \$49,028, and inventory value of \$72,415. In the second quarter ended December 31, 2013, the Company had received proceeds of \$32,500 through sales of our common stock under Regulation D. During the next two quarters ended June 30, 2014, the Company procured proceeds of \$190,500 through sales of our common stock under Regulation D. We do not believe our cash on hand will be adequate to satisfy our ongoing working capital needs. We believe that current capitalization structure, combined with achievement of milestones such as purchase orders from national retailers, will enable us to continue achieve successful financings to continue our growth.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

We currently have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Going Concern

The Company's independent auditors believe it necessary to include a going concern footnote in their audit report. The Company has included an explanatory paragraph in the notes to the financial statement for the year ended June 30, 2014 with respect to Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by Item 8 are presented in the following order:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms	F-2
Balance Sheets as June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014	F-3
Statements of Operations for years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013	F-4
Statements of Stockholders Deficit as of June 30, 2014	F-5
Statements of Cash Flows for years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013	F-6
·	
Notes to Financial Statements	F-7

NightFood Holdings, Inc.

Financial Statements

For the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of NightFood Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of NightFood, Inc. (the "Company") as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related statements of operations, stockholders' deficit, and cash flows for each of the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of NightFood, Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements for 2014 and 2013 have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has negative operating cash flow through June 30, 2014 and has a working capital deficit. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ Beckstead & Company, CPAs Henderson, NV September 26, 2014

NightFood, Inc. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

		June 30, 2014		June 30, 2013
ASSETS				
Current assets:				
Cash	\$	49,028	\$	913
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of \$0 and \$0, respectively)	φ	30	φ	37
Inventory		72,415		31
Other current asset		1,500		_
Total current assets		122,973		950
Total current assets		122,773		730
Total assets	\$	122,973	\$	950
Total assets	Ψ	122,773	Ψ	750
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable	\$	26,555	\$	10,907
Accrued interest expense -related party	Ψ	37.072	Ψ	26,162
Deferred revenue		457		20,102
Accrued expenses		_		-
Short-term borrowings		3,649		3,374
Short-term borrowings-related party		134,517		134,517
Total current liabilities		202,250		174,960
Long term borrowings		10,850		14,433
Commitments and contingencies		-		-
Stockholders' deficit:				
Common stock, without par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, ar	nd			
25,130,560 issued and outstanding as of June 30,2014 and				
20,000,000 outstanding as of June 30, 2013, respectively		25,131		20,000
Additional paid in capital		1,256,816		19,307
Accumulated deficit		(1,372,074)		(227,750)
Total stockholders' deficit		(90,127)		(188,443)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit	\$	122,973	\$	950

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements

NightFood, Inc. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

		For the welve months ended June 30, 2014		For the twelve months ended June 30, 2013	
Revenues	\$	2,575	\$	5,817	
Operating expenses					
Cost of product sold		16,734		1,665	
Advertising & promotional		26,891		596	
Selling, general and administrative		14,274		14,296	
Professional Fees		1,076,721		-	
Total operating expenses	•	1,134,620		16,557	
Loss from operations		(1,132,045)		(10,740)	
Interest expense - bank debt		1,369		1,457	
Interest expense - related party		10,911	_	10,516	
Total interest expense		12,279	_	11,973	
Provision for income tax			_	-	
Net loss	\$	(1,144,325)	\$	(22,713)	
Basic and diluted net loss per					
common share	\$	(0.049)	\$	(0.00)	
Weighted average shares of capital					
outstanding - basic		23,172,482		20,000,000	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements

NightFood, Inc. STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and June 30, 2012

	Commo			_	Additional	A	ccumulated	S	tockholders'
	Shares	ŀ	Par Value	Pa	id in Capital		Deficit		Deficit
Balance, July 1, 2011	200	\$	200	\$	39,107	\$	(115,234)	\$	(75,927)
Common Stock exchanged for Acquisition	20,000,000	\$	20,000		(20,000)		_		(0)
Share Exchange	(200.00)		(200.00)		200.00		_		-
Net loss							(89,803)		(89,803)
Balance, June 30, 2012	20,000,000		20,000		19,307		(205,037)		(165,730)
Net loss			-		-		(22,713)		(22,713)
Balance, June 30, 2013	20,000,000	\$	20,000	\$	19,307	\$	(227,749)	\$	(188,442)
Common stock issued for services	4,078,560	\$	4,079	\$	1,015,561				1,019,640
Common Stock issued for cash	1,052,000	\$	1,052	\$	221,948				223,000
Net loss			-		-		(1,144,325)		(1,144,325)
Balance, June 30, 2014	25,130,560	\$	25,131	\$	1,256,816	\$	(1,372,074)	\$	(90,127)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited financial statements.

NightFood, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Cash flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	tv	For the velve months ended June 30, 2014	l tv	For the velve months ended June 30, 2013
Net loss	\$	(1,144,325)	\$	(22,713)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for operations:				
Stock issued for services		1,019,640		-
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable		7		(10)
Decrease in inventory		(72,415)		1,665
(Increase) in other current assets		(1,500)		0
Increase in accounts payable		15,648		6,027
Increase in accrued expenses		10,910		10,517
Increase in deferred revenue		457		
Net cash used by operating activities		(171,577)		(4,515)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Proceeds from the sale of stock Short-term borrowings-related party Repayment of Short-term debt Net cash provided by financing activities	_	223,000 - (3,308) 219,692		7,750 (3,220) 4,530
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		48,115		16
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period		913		897
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$	49,028	\$	913
Interest paid	\$	1,369	\$	1,457
Taxes paid	\$	-	\$	-
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these a	udited fir	nancial statements		

NightFood Holdings, Inc. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

- NightFood Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") is a New York Corporation organized January 14, 2010 and commenced operations during the first quarter 2010. The Company has acquired the web site nightfood.com. The Company's business model is to manufacture and distribute nutritional products to provide consumers better & healthier nighttime snack options to support better health and better sleep.
- The Company's fiscal year end is June 30.
- The Company currently maintains its corporate office in Elmsford, New York.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the fair presentation of the Company's financial statements, prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Use of Estimates

• The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used in the determination of depreciation and amortization, the valuation for non-cash issuances of common stock, and the website, income taxes and contingencies, among others.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

 The Company classifies as cash and cash equivalents amounts on deposit in the banks and cash temporarily in various instruments with original maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of financial accounting standard FASB Topic 820, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires that the
Company disclose estimated fair values of financial instruments. The carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial position for
assets and liabilities qualifying as financial instruments are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Inventory

 Inventories consisting of packaged food items and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (FIFO) or market, including provisions for spoilage commensurate with known or estimated exposures which are recorded as a charge to cost of sales during the period spoilage is incurred. The Company has no minimum purchase commitments with its vendors.

Advertising Costs

 Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and are included in advertising and promotional expense in the accompanying statements of operations. The Company incurred advertising costs of \$26,891 and \$596 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes

• The Company has not generated any taxable income, and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been provided.

- Deferred income taxes are reported for timing differences between items of income or expense reported in the financial statements and those reported for income tax purposes in accordance with FASB Topic 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes", which requires the use of the asset/liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes and tax benefits are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and for tax loss and credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The Company provides for deferred taxes for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary differences and carry-forwards when realization is more likely than not.
- A valuation allowance has been recorded to fully offset the deferred tax asset even though the Company believes it is more likely than not that the assets will be utilized.
- The Company's effective tax rate differs from the statutory rates associated with taxing jurisdictions because of permanent and temporary timing differences as well as a valuation allowance.

Revenue Recognition

- The Company generates its revenue from products sold from traditional retail outlets along with items distributed from the Company's and other customer website.
- All sources of revenue are recorded pursuant to FASB Topic 605 Revenue Recognition, when persuasive evidence of arrangement exists, delivery of services has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

Concentration of Credit Risk

• Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash deposits at financial institutions. At various times during the year, the Company may exceed the federally insured limits. To mitigate this risk, the Company places its cash deposits only with high credit quality institutions. Management believes the risk of loss is minimal. At June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Company did not have any uninsured cash deposits.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

• The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of FASB Topic 360, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. This statement requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Fair values are determined based on quoted market value, discounted cash flows or internal and external appraisals, as applicable.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

• The Company has assessed all newly issued accounting pronouncements released during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and have found none of them to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

3. Going Concern

• The Company's financial statements are prepared using generally accepted accounting principles, which contemplate the realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. Because the

business is new and has limited operating history and relatively few sales, no certainty of continuation can be stated.

Management is taking steps to raise additional funds to address its operating and financial cash requirements to continue
operations in the next twelve months. Management has devoted a significant amount of time in the raising of capital from
additional debt and equity financing. However, the Company's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon raising
additional funds through debt and equity financing and generating revenue. There are no assurances the Company will receive the
necessary funding or generate revenue necessary to fund operations.

4. Accounts receivable

• The Company's accounts receivable arise primarily from the sale of the Company's nutritional bedtime snack bar. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates each customer account and based on the days outstanding of the receivable, history of past write-offs, collections, and current credit conditions, writes off accounts it considers uncollectible. Invoices are typically due in 60 - 90days. The Company does not accrue interest on past due accounts and the Company does not require collateral. Accounts become past due on an account-by-account basis. Determination that an account is uncollectible is made after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted.

5. Inventory

Inventory consists of the following at June 30,

	 2014	2013	
Finished Goods	\$ 47,424 \$		-
Deposits on Product	23,000		-
Packaging	 1,991		_
TOTAL	\$ 72,415 \$		-

• Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-downs or write-offs of inventory based on its assessment of market conditions and the products relative shelf life. Write-downs and write-offs are charged to loss on inventory write down.

6. Other Current Liabilities

• Other current liabilities consist of the following at June 30,

	2014	2013
Imputed interest on related party note-Sean Folkson	\$ 37,072	\$ 26,161
TOTAL	\$ 37,072	\$ 26,161

7. Short Term Borrowings

- On November 24, 2010, the Company entered into a Small Business Working Capital Loan with a well-established Bank. The loan is personally Guaranteed by the Company's Chief Executive Officer, which is further Guaranteed for 90% by the United States Small Business Administration (SBA).
- The term of the loan is seven years until full amortization and currently carries an 8% interest rate, which is based upon Wall Street Journal ("WSJ") Prime 3.75 % Plus 4.75% and is adjusted quarterly. Monthly principal payments are required during this 84 month period.

• Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, totaled \$1,369 and \$1,457, respectively.

8. Capital Stock Activity

- On October 16, 2013, the NightFood, Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of NightFood Holdings, Inc. Accordingly, the stockholders' equity has been revised to reflect the share exchange on a retroactive basis.
- The Company is authorized to issue One Hundred Million (100,000,000) shares of \$0.001 par value per share Common Stock. Holders of Common Stock are each entitled to cast one vote for each Share held of record on all matters presented to shareholders. Cumulative voting is not allowed; hence, the holders of a majority of the outstanding Common Stock can elect all directors. Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefore and, in the event of liquidation, to share pro-rata in any distribution of the Company's assets after payment of liabilities. The Board of Directors is not obligated to declare a dividend and it is not anticipated that dividends will be paid unless and until the Company is profitable. Holders of Common Stock do not have pre-emptive rights to subscribe to additional shares if issued by the Company. There are no conversion, redemption, sinking fund or similar provisions regarding the Common Stock, All of the outstanding Shares of Common Stock are fully paid and nonassessable and all of the Shares of Common Stock offered thereby will be, upon issuance, fully paid and non-assessable. Holders of Shares of Common Stock will have full rights to vote on all matters brought before shareholders for their approval, subject to preferential rights of holders of any series of Preferred Stock. Holders of the Common Stock will be entitled to receive dividends, if and as declared by the Board of Directors, out of funds legally available, and share pro-rata in any distributions to holders of Common Stock upon liquidation. The holders of Common Stock will have no conversion, pre-emptive or other subscription rights. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company, assets, after the payment of debts and liabilities and any liquidation preferences of, and unpaid dividends on, any class of preferred stock then outstanding, will be distributed pro-rata to the holders of the common stock. The holders of the common stock have no right to require the Company to redeem or purchase their shares. Holders of shares of common stock do not have cumulative voting rights, which means that the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding shares, voting for the election of directors, can elect all of the directors to be elected, if they so choose, and, in that event, the holders of the remaining shares will not be able to elect any of our directors.
- The Company has 25,130,560 and 20,000,000 shares of its \$0.001 par value common stock issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 respectively.
- During the twelve months ended June 30, 2014:
 - the Company issued 1,052,000 shares of common stock for cash proceeds of \$223,000,
 - and issued 4,078,560 shares of common stock for services with a fair value of \$1,019,640.

Dividends

• The Company has never issued dividends.

Warrants

The Company has never issued any warrants.

Options

• The Company has never issued options.

9. Advances by Affiliates

• The Company received cash from Mr. Folkson, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and related party, \$26,350 and \$7,750 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, to supplement the Company's working capital these short term advances have all been repaid. The amounts included in short term borrowings – related party of \$134,517 and 134,517 in 2014 and 2013, respectively represent a Note Payable which is repayable upon Mr.

Folkson providing the Borrower with written notice of demand, according to certain terms. However Mr. Folkson may not demand repayment of the Note until the Company is profitable, and in a positive cash flow position. At that time, Mr. Folkson may demand repayment. Company agrees to make payments equal to 10% of the monthly positive cash flow of the Company until balance is paid in full.

• Imputed interest expense accrued on the note payable to Mr. Folkson totaled \$10,911 and \$10,516 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

10. Income Tax

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax rates and the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

	June 30,	June 30,			
	2014	2013			
Statutory U.S. federal rate	(34.00)%	(34.00)%			
Permanent differences	-	_			
Valuation allowance	34.00%	34.00%			
Provision for income tax expense(benefit)	0.0%	0.0%			

• The tax effects of the temporary differences and carry forwards that give rise to deferred tax assets consist of the following:

	_ 2014		2013
Deferred tax assets:			
Net operating loss carry-forwards	\$ 94,423	\$	52,030
Non-cash compensation	346,678		
Total deferred tax assets	\$ 441,101	\$	52,030
Valuation allowance	(441,101	_)	(52,030_)
Net deferred tax asset	\$ -	\$	

- At June 30, 2014 the Company had estimated U.S. federal net operating losses of approximately \$278,000 for income tax purposes which will expire between 2022 and 2023. For financial reporting purposes, the entire amount of the net deferred tax assets has been offset by a valuation allowance due to uncertainty regarding the realization of the assets. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the year ended June 30, 2014 was an increase of \$389,070. The Company follows FASC 740-10-25 P which requires a company to evaluate whether a tax position taken by the company will "more likely than not" be sustained upon examination by the appropriate tax authority. The Company has analyzed filing positions in all of the federal and state jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. The Company believes that its income tax filing positions and deductions would be sustained on audit and does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a material change to its financial position. Therefore, no reserves for uncertain income tax positions have been recorded.
- The Company may not be able to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards for its US income taxes in future periods should it experience a change in ownership as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). Under section 382, should the Company experience a more than 50% change in its ownership over a 3 year period, the Company would be limited based on a formula as defined in the IRC to the amount per year it could utilize in that year of the net operating loss carryforwards.
- As of June 30, 2014 the Company had not performed an analysis to determine if the Company was subject to the provisions
 of Section 382. The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax including state and local jurisdictions. Currently, no
 federal or state income tax returns are under examination by the respective taxing jurisdictions.

• The Company's accounting policy is to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. The Company has not accrued interest for any periods.

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and Equivalents, Receivables, Other Current Assets, Accounts Payable, Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

- The carrying amounts of these items approximated fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. To increase the comparability of fair value measures, Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC Topic 820-10-35 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
 - Level 1 Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.
 - Level 2 Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.
 - **Level 3** Valuations based on unobservable inputs reflecting our own assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.
- The application of the three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Topic 820-10-35 to our assets and liabilities are described below:

Fiscal 2014 Fair Value Measurements

]	Level 1	Le	vel 2	 Level 3	To	tal Fair Value
Assets							
Other assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	<u> </u>
Total	\$	-	\$	-	\$ -	\$	-
Liabilities							
Short and long-term debt	\$	149,016	\$	-	\$ -	\$	149,016
Total	\$	149,016	\$	-	\$ -	\$	149,016

Fiscal 2013 Fair Value Measurements

	I	evel 1	Le	vel 2	L	evel 3	To	otal Fair Value
Assets								
Other assets	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	
Total	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-	\$	-
Liabilities								
Short and long-term debt	\$	152,324	\$	-	\$	-	\$	152,324
Total	\$	152,324	\$	-	\$	-	\$	152,324

12. Net Loss per Share of Common Stock

The Company has adopted FASB Topic 260, "Earnings per Share," which requires presentation of basic and diluted EPS on the face
of the income statement for all entities with complex capital structures and requires a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator
of the basic EPS computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS computation. In the accompanying financial
statements, basic loss per share of common stock is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of
common stock

outstanding during the year. Basic net loss per common share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Dilution is computed by applying the treasury stock method. Under this method, options and warrants are assumed to be exercised at the beginning of the period (or at the time of issuance, if later), and as if funds obtained thereby were used to purchase common stock at the average market price during the period. However, shares associated with convertible debt, stock options and stock warrants are not included because the inclusion would be anti-dilutive (i.e. reduce the net loss per common share). There were no anti-dilutive instruments.

	2014	2013
Numerator - basic and diluted loss per share net loss	\$(1,144,325)	\$ (22,713)
Net loss available to common stockholders	\$(1,144,325)	\$ (22,713)
Denominator – basic and diluted loss per share –		
weighted average common shares outstanding	23,172,482	20,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share	\$ (0.049)	\$ (0.001)

13. Subsequent Events

- Management of the Company has assessed all significant subsequent events through the date upon which the financial statements first became available for public release.
- The Company entered into a twelve month consulting agreement, beginning July 1, 2014 whereas the Company is required to issue 50,000 shares of it \$0.001 common stock in return for the sundry services which will be provided.

ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The term disclosure controls and procedures means controls and other procedures of an issuer that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78a, et seq.) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the issuer's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The term internal control over financial reporting is defined as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the issuer's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the issuer's board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

- Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the issuer;
- Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
 with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the issuer are being made only in accordance with
 authorizations of management and directors of the issuer; and
- Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the issuer's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal controls over financial reporting will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of inherent limitations in all control systems, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the registrant have been detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Evaluation of Disclosure and Controls and Procedures. Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. The evaluation was undertaken in consultation with our accounting personnel. Based on that

evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at June 30, 2014 due to the lack of accounting personnel. We intend to hire additional employees when we obtain sufficient capital.

<u>Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting</u>. There were no changes in the internal controls over our financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our officers and directors are as follows:

Name	Age	Position(s)
Sean Folkson	45	President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Peter Leighton	52	VP Marketing and Chief Marketing Officer

Term and Family Relationships

Our director currently has a term which will end at our next annual meeting of the stockholders or until successors are elected and qualify, subject to their prior death, resignation or removal. Officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

No family relationships exist among our officers, directors and consultants.

Business Experience

Sean Folkson was elected president, CEO and a director upon formation of the Company. Sean Folkson has CEO and President of our subsidiary NightFood, Inc., a New York corporation, since its formation in January 2010. From 2004 to 2009 he served as president of Specialty Equipment Direct, Inc. which is an online marketer of flooring maintenance equipment which he founded. In 1998 he founded AffiliatePros.com, Inc. a company engaged in assisting its clients with internet marketing which operated through 2008. Mr. Folkson received a B.A. in Business Administration with a concentration in marketing from S.U.N.Y Albany in 1991.

Peter Leighton was appointed Vice President Marketing and Chief Marketing Officer upon the formation of the Company. Peter Leighton holds a BA in marketing from the University of Florida. For over 25 years he has been engaged in marketing and management for functional foods, biotech and turnaround companies. Since 2001 Mr. Leighton has been the founding partner of Copernican Associates, LLOC a consulting firm offering B to B and B to C services in various segments. From 2007 to 2010 he was CEO of Advana Science, Inc., a developer of OTC consumer products and was VP Marketing of Natrol, Inc., an OTC supplement manufacturer from 2002 to 2004. In February 2014, Mr. Leighton was appointed Vice President – Product Strategy for Complete Nutrition Holdings, Inc., a company involved in operating and franchising high end nutritional product stores. Accordingly, he will only be able to serve us on a part time basis.

Legal Proceedings

No officer, director, or persons nominated for these positions, and no promoter or significant employee of our corporation has been involved in legal proceedings that would be material to an evaluation of our management.

Code of Ethics

We have determined that due to our early stage of development and our small size, the present adoption of a code of ethics is not appropriate. If we grow we will adopt a suitable code of ethics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Committees

Our board of directors currently only has one member and consequently does not currently have a compensation committee or nominating and corporate governance committee. If our board of directors were to significantly increase in size, we will consider the appropriateness of committees.

Audit Committee and Financial Expert

Presently, the board of directors acts as the audit committee. The board of directors does not have an audit committee financial expert. The board of directors has not yet recruited an audit committee financial expert to join the board of directors because we have only recently commenced a significant level of financial operations.

Code of Ethics

We do not currently have a Code of Ethics that applies to all employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. We plan to adopt a Code of Ethics.

Director Independence

Our sole director is not deemed independent because he is our majority shareholder, CEO and sole employee.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth the cash and non-cash annual remuneration of our CEO and director during our past two fiscal years:

							Nonqualified			
Name and						Non-Equity	Deferred	All Other		
Principal				Stock	Option	Incentive Plan	Compensation	Compen-		
Position	Year	Salary	Bonus	Awards	Awards	Compensation	Earnings	sation	Total	
Sean Folkson,	2013	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
CEO	2014	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	

The Company has not paid and has no present plan to give any compensation other than cash and the granting of shares of common stock. The Company does not have any Stock Option Plan or other equity compensation plans. We anticipate that we will start to pay our CEO at the rate of \$6,000 per month in calendar 2014.

Employment Agreements

We do not have employment agreements with our executive officers or directors. We have compensated our executive for actual out-of-pocket expenses but have no compensation arrangements. Compensation to be paid in the future will be dependent on the Board's assessment of the Company's financial condition.

Termination of Employment

There are no compensatory plans or arrangements, including payments to be received from the Company, with respect to any person named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above that would in any way result in

payments to any such person because of his or her resignation, retirement or other termination of such person's employment with us.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS

STOCK OPTIONS.

No grants of stock options or stock appreciation rights were made during the year ended June 30, 2014. We have no stock options outstanding.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLANS.

There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive officers. We do not have any material bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors or executive officers.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information in the following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of our shares of common stock (our only class of voting securities) as of September 23, 2014, by: (i) our officers and directors; (ii) all officers and directors as a group; (iii) each shareholder who beneficially owns more than 5% of any class of our voting securities, including those shares subject to outstanding options.

Name and address of owner	Amount owned before the offering	Percent of class
Sean Folkson c/o Nightfood Holdings, Inc. 520 White Plains Road – Suite 500 Tarrytown, NY 10691	15,894,500	63.25%
Peter Leighton c/o Nightfood Holdings, Inc. White Plains Road – Suite 500 Tarrytown, NY 10691	4,000,000	15.9%
All officers and directors as a group (2 persons)	18,894,500	79.2%

Changes in Control

Our management is not aware of any arrangements which may result in "changes in control" as that term is defined by the provisions of Item 403(c) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Company was incorporated on October 16, 2013 and in upon our organization we issued 20,000,000 shares of common stock to the Company's founder, President and CEO in exchange for all of the issued and outstanding common stock of Night Food, Inc., a New York corporation. During October and December 2013, Mr. Folkson assigned 4,000,000 shares of his common stock to Peter Leighton as compensation in connection with his joining the Company and an aggregate of 104,500 shares to 35 persons as gifts. Mr. Folkson has advanced an aggregate of \$134,517 to us to fund our operations. These advances do not bear any interest, but will be repaid on demand but only from 10% of positive cash flow and should we fail to make any payment, the remaining balance on the note begin to bear interest at 12% per annum. Our sole director is not deemed independent because he is our majority

shareholder, CEO and sole employee The Company may seek to satisfy all or part of this indebtedness through the issuance of stock to Mr. Folkson..

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014 for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements and quarterly review of the financial statements included in our Form 10-K or services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years were \$0 and \$11,500, respectively.

Tax Fees

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2014, for professional services related to tax compliance, tax advice, and tax planning work by our principal accountants, we incurred expenses of \$3,000 and \$2,250 respectively.

All Other Fees

None.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibit No.	<u>Description</u>
3.1	Certificate of Incorporation*
3.2	Bylaws*
4.1	Subscription Agreements*
4.2	Specimen Stock Certificate*
10.1	Promissory Note from NightFood, Inc. payable to Sean Folkson*
10.2	Lease Receipt and terms and conditions
22.1	Subsidiaries of the Registrant*
	NightFood, Inc. a 100% owned New York corporation
31.1	Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) certification of Chief Executive Officer
32.1	Section 1350 certification of Chief Executive Officer

^{*}Incorporated by reference to like numbered exhibit to the Registrant's registration Statement on Form S-1 File Number 333-193347

NOTE In accordance with Regulation S-T, the XBRL-related information on Exhibit No. 101 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall be deemed "furnished" herewith and not "filed."

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NightFood Holdings, Inc.

September 29, 2014

By: <u>/s/ Sean Folkson</u>
Sean Folkson, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive and Financial Officer)



Online Office Agreement

Agreement Date : August 20, 2014	Confirmation No : 8192-819535
----------------------------------	-------------------------------

Business Cent	er Details	
NY, Tarrytown - I	Tarrytown	
Address	520 White Plains Road Suite 500 Tamytown New York 10591 United States of America	
Sales Manager	Troy Amus	

Client Details	
Company Name	NightFood, Inc.
Contact Name	Sean Folkson
Address	85 Parkview Road Elmsford New York 10523 United States of America
Phone	212-828-8275
Email	sean@nightfood.com

Office Number	Nu	imber of people	Price per Office
5035	1		\$ 629.00
nitial Payment :		First month's fee :	\$ 0.00
		Service Retainer :	\$ 1,258.00
		Total Initial Payment :	\$ 1,258.00

All agreements end on the last calendar day of the month.

4 Months Free - Total Savings of \$ 2,916.00
 Customer will get the 1st, 4th, 7th and 10th month office fee waived on the initial term.
 Office Set Up Fees Waived - Total Savings of \$ 75.00

Customer is not required to pay the standard set up fee for their office(s).

Terms and Conditions

We are Regus Management Group, LLC, the "Provider". This Agreement incorporates our terms of business set out on our Terms and Conditions which you confirm you have read and understood. We both agree to comply with those terms and our obligations as set out in them. This agreement is binding from the agreement date and may not be terminated once it is made, except in accordance with its terms. Note that the Agreement does not come to an end automatically. See "Cancellation" section of your terms and conditions.

AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE; CLASS ACTION WAIVER: Any dispute or claim relating in any way to this agreement shall be resolved by binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in accord with its Commercial Arbitration Rules (available at www.adr.org), except that you or the Provider may assert claims in small claims court and the Client and the Provider may pursue court actions to remove you, or prevent your removal, from the Center if you do not leave when this agreement terminates. The arbitrator shall have exclusive authority to resolve any dispute relating to the interpretation, applicability, enforceability, or formation of this arbitrator shall not conduct arbitration as a class or representative action. The Client and the Provider acknowledge that this agreement is a transaction in interstate commerce governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. The Client and the Provider agree to waive any right to pursue any dispute relating to this agreement in any class, private actionney general, or other representative action.

100	I accept the terms and conditions	Download the terms and conditions	
	We and our preferred partners would like to ke marketing information. If you would like to red	ep you informed of the latest product news, special offers and other eive this information then select this box.	

Name :	Sean Folkson	on behalf of NightFood, Inc.	Signed on	
I confirm	these details are correct to t	August 22, 2014		
Payme	nt Details			
Card Nu	oe : Visa Card : Sean Folkson mber : **** **** 8915 ate : 05 16	plus applicable TAX and for a	(j) I authorize Regus to debit my credit card for the total initial payment above plus applicable TAX and for all future charges incurred thereafter, unless another form of payment is provided.	

Site Map | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions | Locations



Copyright @Regus Group Companies 2009. All rights reserved.
Reproduction in whole or in part in any form or medium without express written permission of Regus pic is prohibited.

- 1. This Agreement

 Helies of this agreement: This agreement is the connected equivalent of an agreement for accommodation(s) in a tests. The whole of the Center remains in the Provider's prosecution and counts. (bit CURT's ACCIPITS THAT THE ACCIPITATION THAT THE ACCIPI
- 1.2. Corpty with Hoose Rules: The Client must compty with any Hoose Rules which the Bookker imposes generally on users of the Center. The House Rules way from country to country and from Center to Center and these can be requested locate.
- EXEMP.

 3. AUTOMATIC RENEWAL: THIS AGREEMENT LASTS FOR THE PERIOD STATED IN IT AND THEN WILL BE EXTENDED AUTOMATICALLY FOR SUDCESSIVE PERIODS EQUAL TO THE CURRENT TERM BUT NO LESS THAN S MONTHER (URLESS LEGA, BENEWAL TERM LIMITS AREY). WITH TERMINATE BE THE CLIENT OR BY THE PROVIDER REPULANT TO SECTION LA. UNTIL BROUGHT TO AN END BY THE CLIENT OR BY THE PROVIDER, ALL PERIODS SHALL BUT TO THE LAST DAY OF THE MONTH IN WHICH THEY WOULD OTHERWISE EXPIRE. THE PIES ON ANY RENEWAL, WILL BE AT THE THEM PERIONALING MARKET LASTS.
- THE MEMORIAL POINT ENDS. EITHER THE PROVIDER OR THE CLIENT CAN TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT AT THE END DATE STATED IN IT, OR AT THE END OF ANY EXTENSION OR REMEMBE, PRINCE, BY COVIDED AT LEAST THESE MONTHS WHITTER AND ICT TO THE OTHER. HOWEVER, IT THE AGRESHEM, PRINCE, BY COVIDED AT LEAST THE MONTHS OR LESS AND ETHER IS ROVATIONED ON THE CLIENT WISHEST TO TECHNIATE IT, THE MOTICE PRINCE IS TWO MONTHS OR LESS AND ETHER IS ROVATIONED ON THE THAN THE PRINCE DESTRICT DATE OF A RESERVENCE.
- on or two womans or articular executions. These the PRINCO STATED IN THE AGREEMENT,

 1.5 Exhip this agreement immediately. To the maniferom extent permitted by agreement burst, the Provider may not an end to this agreement immediately by giving the Client notice and without need to factow any additional procedure if (a) the Client bursters in science, between goes into liquidation or becomes unable to pay to defice at the few if all on (b) the Client is in branch of one of the obligations which cannot be gut right or which the Provider there given the Client notice to put right and which the Client has feated to put right within southers (1) of days of that notice or (c) its conduct, or that of someone at the Center with its permission or instation, is incompatible with ordinary office use.

- put igns and which the Chert has falled in put agent vertices (34) days of that certics, or (5) is consult, or that of consenses at the Carter within 5 permission or installant, in incompatition with colorary offices, which is consensed to the provider path at each of the path of the displaces, reliable gradients are not on the consense to does not put on each of any outhanding displaces, reliable gradients are revealed and the consense to does not put on each of the period for which this expenses through the content of the period for which this expenses through the content in a longer sensible. In the covert that the hydrical is permissive under the period for which this expenses through the content is not provided in the certic related in this agreement. Here the covert the desire that the content of the period of the covert of

- 1.9 Client Representation of the Provider Employee: Throughout the duration of this agreement, Client agrees that reather Client, nor any of Client's parties, members, offices or employees will represent, or otherwise provide legal coursel to, any of the Provider's center of Former employees in any disjoils with, or legal proceeding against, the Provider, or any of the Provider's emitters, members, offices or employees.
- Notices: All formal notices must be in writing to the address first written above.
- 1.11. Confidentially: The terms of this agreement are confidential. Notice the Provider for the Client must disclose that under a confidential the Provider for the Client must disclose that the provider are the Client must disclose effect that agreement are confidential.
- this agreement enter.

 1.12. Applicable fact: This agreement is interpreted and enforced in accordance with the lies of the place where the relevent Center is located. All dispots recolation proceedings will be conducted in the country, state or province where the center is located. If any processor of these terms and conditions is held and or inventoreable under the application law, the other provisions shall remain in factor. In this case of Jopan all agreements will be interpreted and enforced by the 183-by District Court, and in the case of Prace, any dispots an agreeding the agreement will be settled by the relevant count of the
- 1.13 Enforcing this agreement: The Client must pay any reasonable and proper code including legal fees that the Provider incurs in enforcing this agreement except that the Provider and the Client will bear their own arbitration code in the worst of arbitration.

2. Services and Obligations

- 2.1 Furnished office accommodation(s): the Provide is to provide the number of serviced and furnished office accommodation(s) for which the Clinic has agreed to pay in the Center stand in this agreement. This symmetric list is accommodation(s) for Provide is entitled afforcing for the Center so. The Clinic will have a restriction right to the recent situation of the Center so. The Clinic will have a restriction right to the recent situation of the Center so. The Clinic will have a restriction right to the recent situation of the Center so that the recent situation of the Center soft responsible of the Center s
- accommodatos(s) in advance.

 2.2 Office persists: the Provider is to provide during normal opening hours the services, if requested, described in the relevant service description (which is evaluable on request). If the Provider decides that a request for any portional services decides that a request for any portional services decides that a request for any portional services.

 2.3 the Provider IT: THE DISORDER DOES NOT HAVE REPORTED THAT THE CLEAN EXAMPLE OF THE PROVIDERS AS TO THE SECURITY OF THE SECURITY PROVIDERS AS THE PROVIDER SECURITY OF THE CLEAN EXAMPLE OF THE SECURITY PROVIDERS AS THE SECURITY PROVID

3. Providing the Services

- 3.1 Access to the accommodation(s): the Provider may need to other the Client's accommodation(s) and may do so at any time. However, unless there is an esempsety or the Client has given modes to beninkels, the Provider will advanged to cody the Client towards or excess to compare of the client which or decident the client means access to compare of the client of the Client's accommodation of the Client's beninse.
- 2.2. Availability at the start of this agreement. If for any reason the Provider carried possible the accommodation(s) states in this agreement is that to start it has no liability to the Clinic for any base or in this agreement is considered to be accommodation(s) started in this agreement are Clinic for any base or Clinic for the accommodation(s) the Clinic commod use will be become suitability. The Provider may obtain the start date of this agreement provided it provides to the Client afternative accommodation(s) that shall be at least of equivalent size to the ecommodation(s) datability this agreement.

- 4.1 The Client must not after any part of its accommodation and must take good care of all parts of the Center, its equipment, fishers, fittings and furnishings which the Client center. The Client is listle for any damage caused by it or those in the Centre permission or at the Client's invitation which represent or implied, including but not limited to all employees, contractors, agents or other persons present on the premises.
- 4.2 Office furniture and equipment: The Client must not initial any cabling. If or telecom connections without the Provider's consent, which the intention may refuse at to absolute discretion.

- As a condition to the Provider's consent, the Client must permit the Provider to oversee any installations (for example IT or electrical systems) and to varify that such installations do not interfere with the use of the accemendation(s) by other Clients or the Provider or any landsed of the building.
- 4.3 Ensurement It is the Clear's responsibility to arrange incurrence for its own property which it brings in to the Center and for its own liability to its employees and to third parties. The Provider strongly recommends that the Clear put soft incurrence in place.

- 5. Use
 5.1. The Client must only use the accommodation(s) for office purposes. Office use of a "retail" or "medical" return, involving frequent visits by members of the public, is not permitted.
- S.2. The Client must not carry on a business that computes with the Provider's business of providing serviced office accommodation(s) or its ancillary services.
- 5.3 The Clerk's name and address: The Clent may only carry on that business in its name or some other name that the Provider principally eighned.
 5.4 Use of the Center Address: The Clent may use the Center address as its business address. Any other uses any profitting white other part written consent.

- 6.1. Comply with the late: The Client must comply with all interest lates and regulations in the conduct of its basiness. The Client must do nothing litting in connection with the use of the basiness Center. The Client must not outpritting but may interine with the use of the Center by the Provider of by others, course any material or an object, including the control of the Client in the Provider is an object in the Client in the Client in the Provider is an object in the Client in th
- 6.2 The Client acknowledges and accepts that its personal data may be transferred or made accessible to all entities of the Provider, whenever located, for the purposes of providing the services herein.

7. The Provider's Liability

- 7. The Previolet's Unbillity.
 2. The Previolet's Unbillity.
 2. The extent of the Provides habits; To the maximum extent parenthed by applicable late, the Provides is not taken to the Chest in target of any late or desirage the Chest artifies in convection with this approximate, the services or with the Chest's accommodate and varies the Provides has added the actual deliberation of adaptation or desirage, the Provides in the late that any loss are an exist of the Provides the spread provides and actually desirated and the Provides the Breakful the Service are a result of anotheristical behaviors, the Provides have the Provides the Breakful thereof to the Desirated the Chest's the Provides are also the Provides the Breakful the Provides the Breakful the Provides the Breakful the Provides are also that the Provides are also that the Provides the Breakful the Breakful the Chest's the Provides are also that the Provides the Breakful the Breakful the Breakful the Breakful that the Breakful the Breakful the Breakful that the Brea
- 7.2. EXCLUSION OF CONSEQUENTIAL LOSSES, ETC.: The Provider WILL NOT IN ANY CIRCUMSTANCES HAVE ANY LIBRARTY FOR LOSS OF BUSINESS, LOSS OF PROPETS, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO DATA. THEIR PARTY CLAIMS OR ANY COMMECURATIL LOSS UNLESS THE PROMEE COMMENS.

 ARREST IN WITHIN, THE PROME STRONGLY ADVISES THE CLEMIT TO TREATE AGAINST ALL SUCH POTENTIAL
 TORS, CAMBOE, PROFINE OR LIGHTLY.
- 2.3. Financial limits to the Provider's liability: In all cases, the Provider's liability to the Client is subject to the following limits:
- Without limit for personal injury or death;
- Transition after four processing register of using: Up to a maximum of CL million (1902) million / 41.3 million (or local equivalent) for any one exent or series of committed events for damage to the Clarifs personal property except in Trainey where it will be up to a maximum of the nonliney efficie to even the current former; Up to a maximum equal to 129% of the total free paid between the date the Clarif moved into its accommodation) and the other owhich the claim is openious wises or \$20,000 / 1055,000,000 / 605,000 (or local equivalently windows in the higher, in respect of any other loss or damage except in Turkey where it will be up to a maximum of the mortify efficie for over the carrier form.

S. Fees

- 6.1 Years and duty charges: The Client agrees to pay promptly (f) all sales, use, excise, consumption and any other town and tenne free which it is required to pay to any potential authority (and, at the Productive Longard, mill provide to the Productive reduction of such properties) and (f) any faces good by the Product to any potential authority that are attributable to the accommodation(i), including, without limitation, any guess except, next and occupancy teams, thereof property trans, thereof to or other documentary towns and.
- fees. 8.2 Service flatainer/Deposit: The Client will be required to pay a service retainer/deposit equivalent to two months of the mostly office fee (plus VAT/Tex where applicable) upon entering into the agreement unless or greater encount is specified on the fourt of the agreement. This will be held by the Revised without generating interest as security for performance of all the Client's elliptions under this agreement. The service material/people of any better elliptic electricity of the service of the service. The service material/people of any better elliptic elliptic elliptic in the service of the service and click on the service of the service and client elliptic than service described to the service of the service and clinks when the service described and further when the service described and further when the service described and further when the service described the service described and further when the service described and further when the service described the service of the service and further when the service described and further when the service described and further when the service described the service described and further when the service described the service described and further when the service described and further service and service described and further service when the service described and further service described and further service and service described and
- 8.3 The Provider may require the Client to pay an increased retainer if outstanding fees exceed the service retainer/deposit held and/or the Client frequently fails to pay the Provider when due.
- reasons request the direct request of the restrict of the period of the Provider Man due.

 8.4 The Clear will be charged an office set up fee per occupant. Fee anywhits are boated in the House Bules which can be requested at any time.

 8.5 Regiment the Provider is continually striking to reduce its environmental impact and supports its clients in will make permette via an automated method such as Direct Debt or Clear Cont, whereas together permette via an automated method such as Direct Debt or Clear Cont, whereas local bending systems permit unless another form of perment is officed to the Clears are qualified and correct Key Accuracy amounts payable by the Clears under this agreement way be adopted to other members of the Provider's group.
- emeants propose by the Cent usual this agreement may be adopted to other members of the Proclaim's group.

 So Lutto prepared: If the Client does not pay fees when due, a fee will be charged on all overable balances. This fee will differ by country and is lated in the thouse fues. If the Client depotes any part of an invoice the Client must pay the amount not in dispute by the doe drive the subject to late less. This Provider also searches right to withfulf all services (locking) for the availables of body, destroy the Client access to be accessed/dept(s)) write there are any outstanding less and/or interest or the Client to in breach of the agreement.
- 8.7 Insufficient Funds: The Client will pay a fee for any returned check or any other declined pa to insufficient funds. This fee will differ by country and is listed in the House Rules.
- So mannered states. In one was caree you contray are a such and every arrivestary of the start date of this agreement by a precentage emount equal to the increase in the All Berns Retail Prices Index, or such other treatly equivalent index which the Provider substitutes provided that I've terripany increase a not permitted by applicable late, then the monthly office from hall be increased as specified in the those fittees. This will only apply that have an original south and and other constituting each other late. All the providers are the substituting and the substituting and the substituting extends a 22 months term. Remarks such the reserved as per clause 1.3 above and only those remarks with a start and end date constituting is term of over 12 months with late the same increase applied.
- months will have the assets increase applied.

 8. Standard services: The monthly office file and any recurring services requested by the Client are payable monthly in advance. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these recurring services will be provided by the Provides the specified under for the discussion of this Agreement (forboting any reverse). Specific due tables will differ by country and are stood in the House Rules. Writers a daily site applies, the charge for any such month will be 20 times the daily feet. For a period of lies than a record the fire will be applied on a daily sold as passed on the second of the Provider's positional dates without may charge fine the title of the insolided in areas and payable the month following the california services were provided. Specific due detected with differ by country and are fined in the industry fines.
- TIO Discours, promotion and Office: If the Clark benefited from a special discours, promotion or offer, the reader may disconfine that discours, primerism or offer without notice if the Clark breaches these terms and motions or bosomes peed due on the or more occasions.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

- I, Sean Folkson, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of NightFood Holdings, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods present in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
- (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
- (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals;
- (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involved management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

September 29, 2014 By: <u>/s/ Sean Folkson</u>, Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officer)

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of NightFood Holdings, Inc. for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, I, Sean Folkson, principal executive, financial and accounting officer of NightFood Holdings, Inc.., hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. Such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- 2. The information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of NightFood Holdings, Inc.

September 29, 2014 By: /s/ Sean Folkson,

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officer)